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The ﬁrst schoolhouse was a 20-by- 46 foot
wood-frame building with large, rough-cut
beams supporting a high roof.

By DENISE FRANKLIN
Sentinel staff writer

LIVE OAK — It is a schOol that once
‘had 'a principal dubbed ‘‘Attila the
Hun,” held classes in a tent and served
hot soup prepared by a woman who
lived across the street. :

This homey list of historical facts de-
scribes Live Oak School, in existence
since 1872. The school’s colorful, and
often controversial history, was chroni-
cled by alumnus Phil Reader in the
book, “The First 100 Years: A History of
Live Oak School.”

Reader, who lives in Lﬁve Oak and
does genealogical and historical re-
search and record searching for a liv-
ing, wrote the history for the Aug. 11
reunion of Live Oak School alumni. The
book was published by Cliffside Pub-
lishing of Santa Cruz. !

Many of the surnames of families that'
played a prominent role inithe develop-
ment of the school are familiar today as.
names of streets and places in Live Oak
— Kinsley, Thompson, Corcoran.

‘Martin Kinsley was the father of the
Live Oak School District. He not only
circulated a petition requesting estab-
lishment of:a school, but sold the land
and served on the Board of Trustees for
20 years. A street off 17th Avenue is
named for his family.

A school was desperately needed be-
cause many farm families with young
children had moved into the area and
‘the closest school was in Soquel.

‘For the farmers along the road to
Soquel Landing (now Capitola,) educat-
ing their children posed a special prob-
lem,” Reader writes. ‘“The nearest
school was located in Soquel, which
was almost an hour’s ride on horseback
across farmlands, through steep wood-
ed arroyos, and over several creeks. A
very dangerous journey at that time.

“The kids would have to leave home
just after dawn and not return until late
afternoon or early evening. A 6- or 7-

Phil Reader

Wrote history of school :

year-old child could not be expected to
travel that' distance alone and, of
course, the older chlldren were needed
around the farm.”

In the spring of 1872, Kmsley began
riding from farm to farm: to_discuss
starting a school. The farmers along
Lower Soquel Road were all for it, but
those along the main road. to Soquel
wanted to stay in the Soquel School Dis-
trict.

In August, the county Board of Super-
visors voted to establish the school dis-
trict.

Residents decided to call’it ‘Live Oak,
the English translation ‘of the name of
the old Spanish rancho, Encinalito. The
rancho was named after the most com-
mon native trees in the area.

Some $600 was needed to build the
first one-room schoolhouse. An election
was held in September at Kinsley’s
home and voters passed the tax in-
crease needed for construction funds.

Kinsley sold the district a half-acre of
his land for $50 The land was at the
.corner of what is now 17th Avenue and
Capitola Road.

The first schoolhouse was a 20-by-46-
foot, wood-frame building with large,
rough-cut beams supporting a high roof.
It had benches with enough room for 25
students, and was completed in the
spring of 1873.

This building was used by the school

district until the early 1960s, when it -

was demolished. ;

“The school’s existence,” Reader
writes, “was the cohesive force which
brought the newly emerged Live Oak
community together for the first time
and gave it definition.”

Some may think that bilingual educa-
tion is a modern phenomenon, but Live
Oak School had bilingual classes from
1874-1876 when Eunice Wardwell
taught. This attracted Spanish-speaking
families to send their children to the
school.

Starting at the turn of the century,
subdivisions came to the Live Oak
farmland and school enrollment in-
creased.

Most of the housmg subd1v151ons
were developed by two Santa Cruz Real-
tors, Frank and David Wilson. Most of
:them were carved from the 19th Centu-
ry wheat farms that covered Live Oak.
One thing that didn’t change in ‘the
st-decade of the new centu

During the 19
there were 55 stude
ses had to meet i

dJury issued a' scathing attack on the §

‘school conditions.

‘was ‘fﬁé :

By 1914 the schoolhouse was made out -of brick.

B

Deliah Payton'’s first grade class poses for pictures in 1921.

build two more classrooms. \
It was at this time the school board
hired principal Benjamin Brous. ‘‘His

\teaching style was somewhat ‘strict,’ to-

“say the least, and many a mischievous
“lad felt the sting of his misguided fury,”
“Reader writes. “To this very day, there
.are many solid citizens of Live Oak who
eringe at the sound of his name.”

‘Brous:only. lasted ‘a year, w1th a new

' school board forcing him out “and Live

Oak’s own Attila the Hun was sent

' packing for Fresno with the cheers of

many young miscreant rlnglng in his

In August 1913, a bond measure . sh
passed and the district built a two-: ‘a

. room, brick school house featuring:in-

door plumblng The fight over the bond

measure bought about formatlon of the

Live Oak PTA.
Another successful bond electlon in

September 1922 raised ehough money to

Even during the Depression, the num-

_ber of students continuedto.climb, but-

there were no building additions in the

1930s. In 1941, a three-room Quonset hut

was added to the campus, and it stayed
until 1959.

The Baby Boom hit lee 0Oak school
hard. In 1942, the school had 225 stu-
dents. By 1953, there were 600.

In 1947, a $75,000 bond measure was
passed to build a new school and buy an
additional acre. Another bond measure
was approved in 1949, adding three new
wings and 13 classrooms for a total of
24.

In 1955, things. were. at thej
chool that double sessions were 1t1ativ
d. In 1958, a bond measure passed to'
uild a second school, Del Mar M1dd1e=

-School on 17th Avenue.

Under superintendent Herb Cart;:
wright, who served from 1953-1971, the
district expanded from one school to!
three as.Live Oak discarded its rural
roots to become a middle-class suburb.;

From 1953-1963, enrollment doubled:,
to 1,235 children. Even today, growth
continues in the school district. The dis-
trict has indicated plans for a fourth
school, but financial constraints have
caused this plan to be delayed.



